
 

 

 
 

Regulatory Committee 
 

Wednesday, 3 January 2024 at 7.30 pm 
 

Council Chamber - Civic Centre 
 

Members of the Committee 
 
Councillors: J WiIson (Chair), M Harnden (Vice-Chair), D Clarke and R Davies 
 
In accordance with Standing Order 29.1, any Member of the Council may attend the meeting of this 
Committee, but may speak only with the permission of the Chairman of the Committee, if they are not a 
member of this Committee. 
 

AGENDA 
 
Notes: 
 
1) Any report on the Agenda involving confidential information (as defined by section 100A(3) of the Local 

Government Act 1972) must be discussed in private.  Any report involving exempt information (as 
defined by section 100I of the Local Government Act 1972), whether it appears in Part 1 or Part 2 
below, may be discussed in private but only if the Committee so resolves. 

 
2) The relevant 'background papers' are listed after each report in Part 1.  Enquiries about any of the 

Agenda reports and background papers should be directed in the first instance to Miss Clare Pinnock, 
Democratic Services Section, Law and Governance Business Centre, Runnymede Civic Centre, 
Station Road, Addlestone. Tel: 01932 425627 Email: democratic.services@runnymede.gov.uk. 

 
3) Agendas and Minutes are available on a subscription basis.  For details, please contact 

democratic.services@runnymede.gov.uk.  Tel: 01932 425622.  Agendas and Minutes for all the 
Council's Committees may also be viewed on www.runnymede.gov.uk. 

 
4) In the unlikely event of an alarm sounding, members of the public should leave the building 

immediately, either using the staircase leading from the public gallery or following other instructions as 
appropriate. 

 
5) Filming, Audio-Recording, Photography, Tweeting and Blogging of Meetings 
 
 Members of the public are permitted to film, audio record, take photographs or make use of social 

media (tweet/blog) at Council and Committee meetings provided that this does not disturb the business 
of the meeting.  If you wish to film a particular meeting, please liaise with the Council Officer listed on 

Public Document Pack

1

mailto:democratic.services@runnymede.gov.uk
http://www.runnymede.gov.uk/


 

 

the front of the Agenda prior to the start of the meeting so that the Chairman is aware and those 
attending the meeting can be made aware of any filming taking place. 

 
 Filming should be limited to the formal meeting area and not extend to those in the public seating area. 
 
 The Chairman will make the final decision on all matters of dispute in regard to the use of social media 

audio-recording, photography and filming in the Committee meeting. 

2



 

 

List of matters for consideration 
Part I 
 
Matters in respect of which reports have been made available for public inspection 

Page 

  
1.   Notification of Changes to Committee Membership 

 
 

 
2.   Minutes 

 
To confirm and sign as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 7 
November 2023 (Appendix ‘A’). 
 

4 - 5 

 
3.   Apologies for Absence 

 
 

 
4.   Declarations of Interest 

 
Members are invited to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable and non-registrable interests in items on the agenda. 
 

 

 
5.   Caravan Site Licensing Fees and Charges for Financial Year 2024/25 

 
6 - 30 

 
6.   Exclusion of Press and Public 

 
 

 
Part II 
 
There are no exempt or confidential items on this agenda. 
 

 

 

3



RBC RC 07.11.23 
 

P a g e  |  8 
 

Runnymede Borough Council 
 

Regulatory Committee 
 

Tuesday, 7 November 2023 at 7.37 pm 
 
Members of the 
Committee present: 

Councillors J WiIson (Chair), M Harnden (Vice-Chair), D Clarke and 
R Davies. 
  

Members of the 
Committee absent: 

None  

 
In attendance: Councillors T Burton and T Gates. 
  
11 Minutes 

 
The Minutes of the meetings held on 20 June 2023, as amended, and 12 July 2023 were 
confirmed and signed as a correct record. 
  

12 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
  

13 Fees and Charges 2024/2025 
 
The Committee’s approval was sought to set the fees and charges under its remit for 
2024/2025. 
  
With regard to Gambling Licence fees, Officers reported an estimated deficit of £11,000 for 
2024/2025.  This was because these were set by statute and remained unchanged since 
their introduction in 2005.   
  
In respect of taxi licensing, the estimated deficit was £95,000, of which £10,100 were non-
re-chargeable costs.  This was attributable to there being fewer drivers and vehicles 
licensed than in previous years.  To illustrate the position, Officers reported that in 2013/14 
gross expenditure was £106,000 and gross income was £112,000.  However, by 2022/23, 
gross expenditure was £119,000 but income had fallen to £42,000.  Officers added that the 
number of drivers was slowly rising again with more people taking the Knowledge Test. 
  
Officers were asked whether there were options to reduce the deficit with regard to taxi 
licensing fees through for example shared services with other local authorities.  The 
Committee was advised that although there were opportunities it would take time to 
harmonise policies and procedures.  The Chair said that he would raise this at the Surrey 
Leaders Group. 
  
Members enquired about scrap metal dealers in the borough.  Officers confirmed that the 
Environment Agency held a central register of all licensed companies. 
  
Officers had noticed a slight discrepancy in the figures for mobile home site licences on the 
budget sheet compared with those agreed on a previous urgent action.  It was confirmed 
that despite this the correct fees had been charged.  Therefore, Officers were asked to 
confirm whether the fees relating to mobile home site licences were correct and submit a 
report to the meeting of the Committee in January 2024 so that those particular fees and 
charges could be approved. 
  
Resolved that –  
  

4

Agenda Item 2



RBC RC 07.11.23 
 

P a g e  | 9 
 

The proposed fees and charges, with the exception of those relating to mobile home 
site licences (subject to confirmation of their accuracy), be approved; to be effective 
from the dates in the appendix, or as soon as practical thereafter. 
  

14 Charity Collections Policy 2023 - 2028 
 
The Committee was asked to approve the updated Charity Collections Policy following a 
public consultation which took place over the summer months. 
  
Officers reported a low turn out on the consultation to review the Council’s Charity 
Collections Policy.  However, positive feedback had been received from those who had 
responded.  Members were disappointed that the Charity Commission had declined to 
comment. 
  
The proposed changes to the policy were unchanged from those recommended in June 
2023.  These were to shorten the main document by providing links to the appendices, 
whilst still making them readily available and to add a requirement for commercial clothing 
collection companies to hold a waste carrier’s licence or certificate or relevant exemption.  
Members agreed this would increase accountability and transparency. 
  
Resolved that –  
  
The Charity Collections Policy 2023 – 2028 be approved. 
  

15 SO42 - Urgent Action 
 
The Committee noted urgent action proforma 1026, taken in consultation with the Chair 
and Vice-Chair of the Committee, relating to disability awareness training.  This was to 
extend the deadline for drivers and operators to complete the training.  All but two (who 
were not operating at the moment) had done so. 
  

16 Exclusion of Press and Public 
 
There were no exempt or confidential items on the agenda. 
 

 
 
 
(The meeting ended at 7.58 pm.) Chairman 
 

5



 
Report title Caravan Site Licensing Fees and Charges for Financial Year 

2024/25 

Report author Graeme Cooke, Senior Environmental Health Officer 

Department Environmental Health 

Exempt No  

 
 
Purpose of report: 
 
To Resolve 
 
 
Synopsis of report: 
 
To set out the context and rationale for changes to fees and charges for the caravan 
site licensing function for the next financial year, managed by this Committee, and to 
address discrepancies noted at the Regulatory Committee on 7 November 2023 
between the budget book and the published fee policies.  It is recommended that the 
proposed fees and charges are adopted as set out in this report. 
 
 
Recommendation that: 
 
 the licence fees as set out in the report be approved, to be included in the relevant 
fee policies to apply from 1 April 2024.  
 
 
1. Context and background of report 
 
1.1 Standing Order 42 993 dated 21 January 2022 (Appendix ‘A’) provided for the current 

Caravan Site Licence Fees and Fit and Proper Person Test Application Fees, as 
published in the appendixes to the Standing Order, to come into force for fees 
charged from April 2022. 
 

1.2 A discrepancy arose between the fees within the published fee policies and the 
amounts published within the budget book for 22/23 and 23/24.  It is noted that the 
correct fees under the policies have been collected as opposed to those within the 
budget book. 
 

1.3 Runnymede Borough Council currently has 39 Licensed residential caravan sites 
within the Borough which provide approximately 1,100 homes.  17 of these sites are 
run on a commerical basis and are required to pay an annual site licence fee along 
with other associated fees covering aspects such as licence transfer, variaron of 
licence conditions and depositing site rules.  The remaining sites are individually 
owned and occupied by the site owner and their wider family and are therefore 
exempt from the annual licence fee requirements.  

 
1.4 In addition to the Annual Licence Fee, those sites operated on a commercial basis 

are required to apply for inclusion on the Fit and Proper Person register under the 

6

Agenda Item 5



Mobile Homes (Requirement for Manager to be Fit and Proper Person) (England) 
Regulations 2020.  There is also a range of additional fees that may be applied, as 
detailed in the Caravan Licence Fee Policy. 

   
2. Report and, where applicable, options considered and recommended 
 
2.1 The Caravan Site Licence Fee Policy was originally published in 2013 and revised 

and updated in 2017 and submitted for approval to the Environment and 
Sustainability Committee with a further update agreed under SO42 993 on 21 
January 2022.   

 
2.2 The current fees under this policy for 2022/23 and 23/24 are listed in Table 1 below 

along with the proposed fees for 24/25 and showing any increases or decreases.  
The aim of the fee is to try and ensure that the caravan licensing regime remains cost 
neutral to the Local Authority. 

 
2.3 Table 1 – Table showing Caravan Site Licence Fees for 23/24 and 24/25 with the 

percentage change in fee: 
 

  23/24 24/25 Change 
Application for new site licence for 
single unit site 

Discretionary 586.00 621.00 5.97% 

plus charge for each additional 
unit 

Discretionary 9.15 9.77 6.78% 

Site inspection  Discretionary 50.00 50.00 0% 
Application for inclusion on fit and 
proper person register 

Discretionary 372.00 405.00 8.87% 

Additional FPPT application for 
same relevant person and site 
owner 

Discretionary 110.00 118.00 7.27% 

Application to transfer a site 
licence 

Discretionary 295.00 370.00 25.42% 

Application for amendment to a 
site licence (up to 2 conditions) 

Discretionary 135.00 171.00 26.67 

Additional conditions (with 
amendment application) 

Discretionary 28.00 29.50 5.36% 

Application for a replacement 
copy of a site licence  

Discretionary 25.00 37.00 48% 

Annual licence fee for a single unit 
site  

Discretionary 55.00 55.00 0% 

additional fee for each additional 
unit up to 101 units 

Discretionary 6.00 6.00 0% 

additional fee for each additional 
unit up to 201 units 

Discretionary 5.00 5.00 0% 

additional fee for each additional 
unit over 201 

Discretionary 4.00 4.00 0% 

Fee for the deposit of site rules Discretionary 75.00 171 128% 
 
2.4 The proposed licence fees for 24/25 include adjustments to application fees, licence 

transfer fee, variation of licence condition fees and other ancillary fees but notably 
does not propose an increase to the annual licence fee.   

 
2.5 The Fit and Proper Person Fee Policy was introduced in June 2021 in time for 

implementation of the Mobile Homes (Requirement for Manager to be Fit and Proper 
Person) (England) Regulations 2020 and it is noted that the policy stated it would be 
reviewed in July 2023.  Therefore, the proposed Fit and Proper Person Fees from 
April 2024 are included in Table 1. 

7



 
3. Policy framework implications 
 
3.1 There are no policy framework implications. 
 
4 Resource implications/Value for Money 
 
4.1  In setting fees and charges there is a fine balance to be struck between trying to  

recover the cost of running services and not alienating our customers by making the 
charges unaffordable.  In undertaking their reviews managers must balance these 
risks whilst at the same time trying to generate additional income to contribute 
towards the Council’s ongoing budget deficit.  In the past two years the licence fees 
have generated a small surplus £368 in 21/22 and £565 in 22/23.  However, there is 
an overall deficit of £6,444 since 2016/17. 

 
4.2 Once agreed, the fees and charges will be included as part of the 2024-25 budget 

and the effects of any increases/reductions in the charges will be incorporated into 
the figures for the service area.  

 
5. Legal implications 
 
5.1 The fees referred to in the report have the status of ‘discretionary’ and as such are 

not set by statute and the Council may amend the fee charged or choose to make no 
charge for the service. 

 
6. Equality implications 
 
6.1 The original Equality Impact Screening Assessment is attached within Appendix ‘A’. 
 
7. Environmental/Sustainability/Biodiversity implications  
 
7.1 The annual setting of existing fees and charges has no environmental, sustainability  

or biodiversity implications.  Any change to a structure or the inclusion of new 
charges that have any such implications will be set out in a separate report to 
Committee. 

 
8. Risk Implications 
 
8.1 None identified. 
 
9. Timetable for Implementation 
 
9.1 The new fees and charges under the policies will be implemented from 1 April 2024. 
 
10. Conclusions 
 
10.1 The Committee is asked to resolve that the updated Caravan Site Licence Fees and 

Fit and Proper Person Test Fees be approved to apply from 1 April 2024.  
 
11. Background papers 
 

• Environmental and Sustainability Committee Agenda and Minutes 21 November 
2013, 23 January 2014 and 28 September 2017; 

• Standing Order 42 Number 798 29 January 2014; 

8



• Regulatory Committee 7 November 2023. 
 
12. Appendices 
 
 Appendix A - Standing Order 42, Number 993 21 January 2022 
  

9



 
 
 

10



APPENDIX 'B'

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Caravan Site Licensing Fees and Charges for Financial Year 2024/25
	SO 42 993 - PART I ITEM


